
 
 

ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 8 June 2015 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Geoff Ellis (Chair), Liz Maxwell (Vice-Chair), 
Carol Daniel, Tony Gray, Ronald Hills, Adrianna McNulty, 
Ric Metcalfe, Edmund Strengiel and Loraine Woolley 
 

Substitute member(s): 
 

Councillors Gill Clayton-Hewson and Ralph Toofany 
 

Independent Person(s): 
 

Chris Elkington and Roger Vine 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Democratic Services and Becky Scott 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 23 March 2015  
 

3 - 6 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

7 - 10 

4.  Member Induction Review  
 

11 - 14 

5.  Local Democracy Week Update  
 

15 - 16 

6.  Independent Person Allowance  
 

17 - 18 

7.  The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015  
 

19 - 30 

8.  Work Programme Update  
 

31 - 36 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally blank.



Ethics and Engagement Committee 23 March 2015 

 
Present: Councillor Geoff Ellis (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors: Gill Clayton-Hewson, Tony Gray, Gary Hewson 

(substituted for Adrianna McNulty), Ronald Hills, 
Ric Metcalfe and Loraine Woolley 
 

Independent Person(s): Roger Vine 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Katie Vause, Councillor Adrianna McNulty, 
Councillor Edmund Strengiel and Chris Elkington 

 
33.  Confirmation of Minutes - 2 February 2015  

 
The Chair further noted that, subsequent to minute no. 32, insufficient interest had 
been showed by local schools in taking part in an event organised to promote young 
people’s interest in democracy. As such, the event would be deferred to a later date, 
noting the Reserve Independent Person’s suggestion that any future event be 
scheduled to coincide with Local Democracy Week. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2015 be confirmed. 
 

34.  Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Gary Hewson declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda item 
titled 'Planning Committee Dispensation'. The councillor was a member of the 
Labour Party, which was the occupier of the relevant property.  
 
Councillor Gill Clayton-Hewson declared a Personal Interest with regard to the 
agenda item titled 'Planning Committee Dispensation'. The councillor was a member 
of the Labour Party, which was the occupier of the relevant property.  
 
Councillor Loraine Woolley declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda 
item titled 'Planning Committee Dispensation'. The councillor was a member of the 
Labour Party, which was the occupier of the relevant property.  
 
Councillor Ric Metcalfe declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda item 
titled 'Planning Committee Dispensation'. The councillor was a member of the 
Labour Party, which was the occupier of the relevant property.  
 
Councillor Tony Gray declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda item 
titled 'Planning Committee Dispensation'. The councillor was a member of the 
Labour Party, which was the occupier of the relevant property.  
 

35.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 
a) presented a report containing information on recent cases relating to other 

local authorities' codes of conduct. 
 
b) summarised the cases within the report noting the particular areas which 

members might wish to consider. 
 

Item No. 1

3



c) highlighted that members should identify any issues raised within the 
report as being relevant for further consideration with regard to their 
impact upon members. 

 
d) invited members' questions and comments. 

 
Members discussed a case involving a failure by councillors to declare that they 
were the directors of a company relevant to a decision. It was considered that, based 
on the available facts, if similar circumstances were considered by the Council they 
would be unlikely to result in the councillors having no case to answer. 
 
The Reserve Independent Person noted that, in relation to the case involving the use 
of officers to send party political emails, there should be emphasis placed upon 
officers refusing unreasonable requests of this kind. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

36.  Planning Committee Dispensation  
 

The Legal and Democratic Services Manager: 
 
a) presented a report regarding an application which was likely to be 

considered by the Planning Committee in the near future. 
 
b) advised that a number of Planning Committee members were likely to 

have a personal and pecuniary interest in the business owing to their 
membership of the Labour Party. 

 
c) requested that the Committee determine whether it would be appropriate 

to grant a dispensation which would allow members of the Planning 
Committee to take part in consideration of the item if they would otherwise 
have had an interest which would have precluded them from doing so. 

 
d) invited members' questions and comments. 

 
Members noted that the last dispensation agreed in relation to the Planning 
Committee had resulted in the decision being taken by officers under delegated 
powers; this was considered to be a preferable outcome as it limited the scope for 
the appearance of bias in the decision-making process. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. a dispensation for all elected members for a period of three months in relation 
to the planning application for Grafton House on Newland, as detailed in 
paragraph 3.1 of the report provided, be agreed in order to prevent a relevant 
meeting becoming inquorate. 

 
2. the Committee’s preference for the application to be determined by officers 
under their delegated powers be noted and enacted if possible. 

 
37.  Work Programme 2015-16  

 
The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

4



a. presented the proposed 2015/16 Ethics and Engagement Committee work 
programme for consideration by members. 
 

b. invited members' questions and comments.  
 
Members:  
 

• discussed the arrangements relating to the annual appointment of the Mayor, 
and considered the potential difficulties faced by members in balancing 
mayoral duties against work commitments. These matters would be discussed 
by the political group leaders prior to any consideration of broader principles 
by any relevant committees. 

• noted that there was an ongoing investigation into a complaint against a 
councillor by a member of the public. 

 
RESOLVED that the work programme be approved. 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT: CASES REVIEW 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide information on recent cases relating to other local authorities’ codes of 

conduct and consider their potential relevance to the Council. 
 

2. National Cases Relating to Councillor Conduct 
 

2.1 Since the removal of the Standards for England Board as part of the changes 
brought through the Localism Act 2011, the Council no longer receives a summary 
of cases reported from across the country. As a result, the cases chosen for 
consideration are drawn primarily from local government networks and media 
reports, and are summarised below.  
 

2.2 Any reports highlighted are gathered solely from information made available by the 
relevant local authorities. As cases are often considered to contain exempt 
information, there are potentially elements of the case which may not be publicly 
available. As such, members should be aware that any cases below are provided 
for the purpose of discussion and may not give the full picture in every regard. 
 

2.3 East Dorset District Council 
Further to a previous report outlining that a councillor had been charged with an 
offence relating to a failure to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest, it can now be 
confirmed that the councillor has been convicted of the offence and given a six-
month conditional discharge and ordered to pay £930 in costs. 
 

2.4 As members may recall, the case related to a councillor who was a paid non-
executive director of a housing company. This interest had been registered as a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. Land in which the company had an interest was 
subsequently considered as part of the council’s core strategy. The councillor took 
part in the debate and voted in support of the core strategy. The councillor had 
previously attended meetings with the housing company in June 2011 at which the 
relevant land had been discussed. 
 

2.5 The judge took into account the councillor’s good character and that the councillor 
attended approximately 700-800 meetings per year, but did not find that this 
represented a ‘reasonable excuse’ for wrongfully taking part in the decision-making 
process. It was further noted that the councillor: 
 

• had received training on disclosable pecuniary interests. 

• was aware of his right to apply for a dispensation but had not done so. 

• had the option of discussing his situation with the council’s monitoring officer. 

Item No. 3

7



• had ultimate responsibility for determining matters in which they had an 
interest. 

• did not directly benefit from the decision but that the Localism Act 2011 made 
it clear he should not have taken part or voted in the meeting. 

 
2.6 The judge noted that in considering whether a councillor had a ‘reasonable excuse’ 

in failing to declare an interest, the councillor’s state of mind would not automatically 
be excluded as a factor. This would mean that, for example, forgetfulness, 
misunderstanding, or an accidental breach could be relevant factors in determining 
whether an offence has been committed. 
 

3. Potential Learning Points  
 

3.1 
 

Having regard to these complaints which have been investigated by other local 
authorities, members should consider whether any appropriate actions can be 
identified to ensure that the likelihood of any future breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct by members representing the City of Lincoln Council is limited. 
 

3.2 
 

The Ethics and Engagement Committee may wish to consider the following actions 
if any learning points are identified: 
� Issuing guidance to members and any other relevant parties on a general 

topic which presents a cause for concern with a view to potential future 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct. 

� Requesting specific training for all members or members whose individual 
status would be relevant to the particular training. 

� Proposing amendments to the Member Code of Conduct and the procedure 
for considering complaints, if improvements can be identified. 

� Any other actions falling within the remit of the Committee which might aid 
the improvement of councillors’ conduct. 

 
3.3 
 

If members are aware of further cases of broad interest from other local authorities 
in relation to ethical behaviour by councillors, details can be submitted via 
Democratic Services or raised at the meeting of the Committee for potential 
inclusion in a future report. 
 

4. Strategic Priorities  
 

4.1 The development of a fit-for-purpose council relies upon the proper conduct of 
officers and members. By considering the lessons learned from other local 
authorities the Council is better positioned to take preventative action to resolve any 
potential issues before they arise. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications  
The Ethics and Engagement Committee’s role includes the promotion and 
maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted members; 
this report forms a part of the work of the Committee in proactively addressing any 
matter that could detract from the reputation and behaviour of the Council or its 

8



councillors. 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

6.1 
 

That the Ethics and Engagement Committee note the contents of the report and 
recommend any suitable action arising from it. 

 

9



10

This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
MEMBER INDUCTION REVIEW 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide an update on the outcome of the member induction process. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The Council usually holds elections every three years in four. This means that the 

induction process has been developed to be deliverable on annual basis with regard 
to the impact upon budgets and officer resources. 
 

2.2 The induction process has been considerably revised in recent years to provide new 
members with a considerably more thorough and structure introduction to acting as 
a member of the City of Lincoln Council. 
 

3. May 2015 Inductions 
 

3.1 
 

Following the election held on 7 May 2015, two new councillors were elected to the 
City of Lincoln Council. Both councillors attended the induction days held on 11 and 
12 May 2015. 
 

3.2 
 

A provisional schedule for the 2015/16 induction was previously considered by the 
Ethics and Engagement Committee and the induction was subsequently delivered in 
accordance with these plans. The schedule is re-produced below for members’ 
information: 
 

3.3 
 

Monday, 11 May 2015 
10:00 
 

Formalities, including: 
• Issuing of City Hall access cards 
• Taking photographs for Council website and publicity 
materials 

• Signing the acceptance of office 
12:00 Lunch provided at City Hall 
13:10 Meet the Officers I (officers from the departments with which 

councillors and the public deal most frequently will give short 
presentations on the Council’s responsibilities and how to deal with 
any issues that may arise.) 

15:10 Break 
15:30 Member Code of Conduct and Meeting Procedure Rules Briefing 
17:00 Induction close 
 
 
 

Item No. 4

11



Tuesday, 12 May 2015 
10:00 Introduction to Scrutiny Committees 
11:00 Meet the Officers II  
12:00 Lunch provided at City Hall 
13:00 Meet the Officers III  
15:00 Break 
15:15 Feedback session (an opportunity for councillors to consider their 

new positions and to raise any issues which have not yet been 
resolved). 

16:00 Meet the Directors (opportunity to meet with the Council’s directors 
for introductions and an overview of the directorates and their 
service priorities). 

17:00 Induction close 
 

 
3.4 
 

 
The meet the officers sessions comprised a series of 20 minute presentations from 
the following areas: 
 

• Planning 

• Licensing 

• Civic 

• Customer Services 

• Work-Based Learning 

• Revenues & Benefits 

• Private Housing 

• IT  

• Communications  

• Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Data Protection 

• Community Services 

• Neighbourhood Working 

• Housing Officers  

• Housing Maintenance and Investment 
 

3.5 
 

Initial feedback from the councillors involved in the induction has been positive. 
However, as part of the induction it was stressed that feedback is welcome at any 
stage. Any feedback provided as a result of experience gained during new 
members’ first months in office will also be taken into account. 
 

3.6 Members will note that elections will be held for all of the Council’s seats in May 
2016 as a result of changes to the city’s electoral ward boundaries. As such there is 
a possibility that a greater number of current councillors may either retire or there 
will be more electoral changes than in years when elections are held by thirds. In 
response to this, officers will seek to ensure the induction process is as streamlined 
as possible in order to meet with any increase in demand. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

12



 
5. Recommendation  

 
5.1 
 

That members note the report. 
 

 

13



14

This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
LOCAL DEMOCRACY WEEK UPDATE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide an update on the Council’s plans for taking part in Local Democracy 

Week 2015. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 In 2014 the Council distributed a series of democracy-themed lesson plans to 
schools in Lincoln as part of Local Democracy Week. This course of action was 
chosen in preference to more time-intensive projects which would also be less 
easily offered to a wider number of students. 
 

2.2 At the Ethics and Engagement Committee meeting of 2 February 2015 members 
resolved to attempt to organise a democracy debate for school pupils from across 
Lincoln. This project was led by the Committee’s vice-chair but unfortunately the 
event was postponed as a result of a lack of response from local schools. 
 

2.3 At the Ethics and Engagement Committee meeting of 23 March 2015 members 
further resolved to seek to incorporate a democracy debate within the Council’s 
plans for Local Democracy Week 2015. 
 

3. October 2015 Plans 
 

3.1 
 

Local Democracy Week will take place from 12-18 October 2015. A letter has been 
sent to the head teacher of each secondary school in Lincoln highlighting the 
Council’s interest in facilitating events during Local Democracy Week. At the time of 
writing the report, one positive response had been received from schools. However, 
schools were asked to make any responses by 8 June 2015 so a verbal update on 
any further interested schools will be delivered to the Committee. 
 

3.2 
 

As a result of previous difficulties in promoting interest from schools in local 
democracy events, the format of any events has been left open to any feedback 
from interested schools. While this may mean that any event would deviate from the 
initial plan for a centrally-hosted debate, it is probable that this increases the 
likelihood of schools responding to this request by allowing flexibility to work around 
individual schools’ priorities. 
 

3.3 
 

Any further events are likely to be dependent on the level of interest from schools. 
As noted above, lesson plans have previously been circulated to schools to provide 
an alternative source of democratic education.  

Item No. 5

15



 
4. Organisational Impacts  

 
4.1 Finance  

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members note the report and offer any suggestions regarding any events to be 
facilitated by the Council during Local Democracy Week. 
 

 

16



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
INDEPENDENT PERSON ALLOWANCE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To recommend that the Ethics and Engagement Committee considers the 

allowance currently paid to the Independent Person following a recent decision to 
increase the allowance paid to the Independent Member of the Audit Committee. 
 

2. Current Position 
 

2.1 The Ethics and Engagement Committee has delegated authority to set the 
Independent Person’s allowance. The allowance is currently set at £300 per annum. 
No allowance is currently paid to the Reserve Independent Person; any allowance 
associated with the role would be arranged on an ad hoc basis if the Independent 
Person were unavailable to act. 
 

2.2 After the introduction of the Independent Person, an Independent Member of the 
Audit Committee was also appointed. The Independent Member of the Audit 
Committee has, until recently been paid £300 per annum, in line with the allowance 
paid to the Independent Person. 
 

2.3 Following notice of the Independent Member of the Audit Committee’s intention to 
retire from the role, an advertisement for his replacement was placed. However, no 
applications for the role were received. The Audit Committee therefore 
recommended that the allowance be increased to £500 per annum in order to attract 
a suitable candidate to the role. This change was approved by Council on 14 April 
2015. 
 

2.4 The Audit Committee further considered that, in view of the original decision to align 
the Independent Person and the Independent Member of the Audit Committee’s 
allowance, consideration should be given to the allowance currently paid to the 
Independent Person. 
 

3. Scope for Change 
 

3.1 
 

The current allowance paid to the Independent Person is £300 per annum. The 
amount paid to an Independent Person is left to the discretion of the local authority 
under the Localism Act 2011.  
 

3.2 
 

It should be noted that the Localism Act 2011 specifically excludes Independent 
Persons from acting as co-optees while carrying out their role or from having served 
such a role in the five years preceding their appointment. There is clearly the 

Item No. 6

17



potential for the posts to be attracting the same candidates, particularly given the 
crossover in skills required for the respective posts. As such, it is possible, though 
the sums under discussion are relatively small, that a candidate may opt to apply for 
one role in preference to the other as a result of the difference between the 
available allowances. 
 

3.3 
 

Members may also consider that the roles have similar workloads, with the 
Independent Person also having statutory responsibilities in relation to considering 
complaints made against councillors. As such, an increase to ensure parity between 
the two allowances would appear justifiable. 
 

3.4 
 

The amount currently paid by the Council to the Independent Person is broadly 
comparable to the sums paid by other similar local authorities, although there is 
some variation between authorities paying an annual sum or on a per case basis. 
Equally, sums of either £300 or £500 fall within the typical ranges for allowances 
paid by district councils to their Independent Person. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
An increase to the Independent Person’s allowance to the sum of £500 per annum 
could be met from existing budgets. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That the Ethics & Engagement Committee consider the level of the allowance paid 
to the Independent Person and, if necessary, agree a change to that level. 
 

 

18



ETHICS & ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING ORDERS) (ENGLAND) 
(AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS 2015 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To advise members regarding the forthcoming revision of the Council’s Constitution 

to take account of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015. 
 

2. Background to the Legislation 
 

2.1 Every council is required to appoint a Head of Paid Service, a Monitoring Officer, 
and a Chief Finance Officer. Each of these posts carries specific statutory 
responsibilities. As these postholders operate in a political environment, councils 
have been required to follow special procedures to investigate disciplinary matters 
regarding these officers.  
 

2.2 Previously, councils have had to appoint a Designated Independent Person, usually 
a barrister, to undertake any disciplinary investigations relating to these postholders. 
The recommendations from these investigations were then binding upon the 
council. This process was criticised by Government as being overly expensive, 
whether through the associated legal costs or as a result of reaching settlements 
with postholders. 
 

2.3 As a result of these concerns, the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2015 have been created and took effect on 11 May 2015. 
The 2015 Regulations are provided as Appendix A. 
 

3. Proposed Revisions 
 

3.1 
 

The 2015 Regulations set out a revised process which councils must follow in taking 
disciplinary action against a Head of Paid Service, a Monitoring Officer, or a Chief 
Finance Officer. 
 

3.2 
 

The Council is no longer required to appoint a Designated Independent Person to 
lead the disciplinary process. Instead, the Council is now required to appoint a 
panel, invitations to sit on which must be issued to at least two Independent 
Persons. The Independent Persons must already be acting in that capacity either 
within the Council or at another local authority, and be invited in accordance with the 
following priority order: 
 

1. a relevant Independent Person who has been appointed by the authority and 
who is a local government elector; 

Item No. 7

19



 
2. any other relevant Independent Person who has been appointed by the 

authority; 
 

3. a relevant Independent Person who has been appointed by another authority 
or authorities. 

 
3.3 
 

Based upon the Council’s current arrangements, priority would be given to the 
existing Independent Person and the Reserve Independent Person to serve on any 
panel should they wish to. The Council would also be able to appoint as many 
Independent Persons from other authorities as it saw fit. 
 

3.4 
 

The 2015 Regulations offer no further guidance as to what form the panel should 
take, other than to confirm the panel is appointed under section 102(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. Council would therefore be able either to appoint a panel 
comprising only Independent Persons or a panel also incorporating elected 
members. However, the documentation provided with the 2015 Regulations strongly 
suggests that the Panel should comprise solely independent persons, rather than 
incorporating elected members. 
 

3.5 
 

The decision relating to the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer, and Chief Finance Officer posts now rests with Council. However, Council 
must first consider any feedback from the panel, the outcome of a relevant 
investigation, and any representations from the affected postholder. The panel must 
be appointed at least 20 working days before a meeting of Council is held to 
consider any dismissal.  
 

3.6 The relevant provisions relating to the appointment or dismissal of these posts are 
contained in the Constitution’s Officer Employment Procedure Rules. The current 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules are attached as Appendix B. The required 
changes to the Constitution are outlined in the recommendations below. 
 

3.7 The Council is required to implement the changes to its standing orders at the first 
ordinary meeting falling after 11 May 2015, so it is not possible to defer this decision 
to a future meeting. 
 

4. Strategic Priorities  
 

4.1 In striving to ensure it is a fit-for-purpose council, the Council must ensure that it 
responds appropriately to new and changing legislative requirements and powers. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance  
There is no dedicated budget relating to the previous arrangements for Designated 
Independent Persons. Any payments to Independent Persons would be made on an 
ad hoc basis and limited to the amounts ordinarily paid for similar investigations 
relating to breaches of a member code of conduct. As such, any future costs can be 
met from existing budgets. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications  
The Council is obliged to make changes to its standing orders to meet the 

20



requirements of the 2015 Regulations and does not have legal authority to do 
otherwise. 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

6.1 
 

That the Ethics and Engagement Committee note the following amendments 
proposed to be made to the Council’s Officer Employment Procedure Rules: 
 

 1. That the following section (‘Dismissal of Senior Statutory Postholders’) be 
inserted between sections 6 and 7: 

 
a) The Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer, and the Chief 

Finance Office (‘Senior Statutory Postholders’) may not be 
dismissed unless the procedure set out below is complied with. 

 
b) Any decision to dismiss a Senior Statutory Postholder must be 

taken by the Council. 
 
c) The Council must appoint a Panel at least 20 working days before 

a meeting of the Council at which a vote regarding whether to 
dismiss a Senior Statutory Postholder will be taken. 

 
d) At least two Independent Persons must be invited to be members 

of any Panel. An Independent Person is someone appointed under 
section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
e) Any Independent Persons must be invited to be members of the 

Panel in accordance in the following priority order: 
 

1. Any Independent Person who has been appointed by the 
Council and is registered as a local government elector within 
the city’s administrative boundaries. 

2. Any other Independent Person who has been appointed by the 
Council. 

3. Any Independent Person who has been appointed by another 
authority or authorities.  

 
f) Any remuneration, allowances or fees paid to an Independent 

Person appointed to the Panel must not exceed the level payable 
to that Independent Person in respect of that person’s role as 
Independent Person under the Localism Act 2011. 

 
g) Before taking any decision to dismiss any of the above Senior 

Statutory Postholders, the Council must take into account the 
following factors: 

 
1. Any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel. 
2. The conclusions of any investigation into the proposed 
dismissal. 

3. Any representations from the relevant Senior Statutory 
Postholder. 

 

21



h) Nothing in this process shall remove an officer’s extant contractual 
rights. 

 
2. That section 6(b) be omitted. 
 
3. That the title of section 7 be changed to ‘Other Dismissals’. 

 
6.2 That the Ethics and Engagement Committee note the proposal that Article 4.2 of the 

Constitution be amended to incorporate Council’s power to dismiss the Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer. 
 

 

22



 

 

S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2015 No. 881 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, ENGLAND 

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2015 

Made - - - - 25th March 2015 

Laid before Parliament 25th March 2015 

Coming into force - - 11th May 2015 

The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, in exercise of the powers 

conferred by sections 8, 20 and 190(1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989(a) makes 

the following Regulations. 

Citation, commencement and interpretation 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2015 and come into force on 11th May 2015. 

(2) In these Regulations— 

“the 2001 Regulations” means the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 

2001(b). 

Amendments relating to approval of dismissal of certain officers 

2.—(1) The 2001 Regulations are amended as follows. 

(2) In regulation 5, after “the appointment or dismissal of the head of the authority’s paid 

service” insert “, or the dismissal of the authority’s monitoring officer or chief finance officer,”. 

(3) For regulation 6 substitute— 

“Standing orders in respect of disciplinary action 

6. No later than the first ordinary meeting of the authority falling after 11th May 2015 a 

local authority must, in respect of disciplinary action against the head of the authority’s 

paid service, its monitoring officer or its chief finance officer— 

(a) incorporate in standing orders the provisions set out in Schedule 3 or provisions to 

the like effect; and 

(b) modify any of its existing standing orders in so far as is necessary to conform with 

those provisions, in particular by removing from its existing standing orders the 

provisions which were set out in Schedule 3 as it was immediately before the date 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1989 c. 42.  Section 20  was amended by section 119 of, and Schedule 6 to, the Local Democracy, Economic Development 

and Construction Act 2009 (c. 20). 
(b) S.I. 2001/3384.  There are no relevant amendments. 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������
APPENDIX A

23



 

 2

that the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 

2015 came into force, or provisions to the like effect.”. 

(4) Regulations 7 (investigation of alleged misconduct) and 10 (transitional and consequential 

provisions) are omitted. 

(5) In Schedule 1 (provisions to be incorporated in standing orders relating to staff)— 

(a) in paragraph 4 of Part 1 (authority with mayor and cabinet executive) and in paragraph 4 

of Part 2 (authority with leader and cabinet executive), in each case for paragraph (1) 

substitute— 

“(1) Where a committee, sub-committee or officer is discharging, on behalf of the 

authority, the function of the appointment of an officer designated as the head of the 

authority’s paid service, the authority must approve that appointment before an offer of 

appointment is made to that person. 

(1A) Where a committee, sub-committee or officer is discharging, on behalf of the 

authority, the function of the dismissal of an officer designated as the head of the 

authority’s paid service, as the authority’s chief finance officer, or as the authority’s 

monitoring officer, the authority must approve that dismissal before notice is given to that 

person.”; 

(b) for paragraph 4 of Part 4 (authority operating committee system), substitute— 

“4.—(1) Where a committee, sub-committee or officer is discharging, on behalf of the 

authority, the function of the appointment of an officer designated as the head of the 

authority’s paid service, the authority must approve that appointment before an offer of 

appointment is made to that person. 

(2) Where a committee, sub-committee or officer is discharging, on behalf of the 

authority, the function of the dismissal of an officer designated as the head of the 

authority’s paid service, as the authority’s chief finance officer, or as the authority’s 

monitoring officer, the authority must approve that dismissal before notice of dismissal is 

given to that person.”. 

(6) For Schedule 3 (provisions to be incorporated in standing orders in respect of disciplinary 

action) substitute the Schedule set out in the Schedule to these Regulations. 

Transitional and saving provisions 

3.—(1) Where, before the date on which these Regulations come into force, anything was being 

done in respect of an allegation of misconduct in accordance with— 

(a) regulation 7 of the 2001 Regulations, including that regulation as applied by regulation 

10(1)(b) of the 2001 Regulations; or 

(b) the provisions set out in paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities 

(Standing Orders) Regulations 1993(a), or Schedule 3 to the 2001 Regulations (or 

provisions to the like effect) incorporated in the local authority’s standing orders, 

the provisions mentioned in paragraphs (a) and (b) shall continue to apply in respect of the 

allegation of misconduct in question. 

(2) Anything which, before the date on which the local authority incorporated or modified 

provisions in standing orders in accordance with the 2001 Regulations as amended by regulation 

2, was being done by, to or in relation to an officer in accordance with a provision mentioned in 

paragraph (1) may be continued after that date by, to or in relation to that officer in accordance 

with that provision. 

 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 1993/202. The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 1993  were repealed by  S.I. 2001/3384 subject to 

savings specified in regulation 8(3) of S.I. 2001/3384  

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

24



 

 3

(3) Nothing in these Regulations shall apply in relation to the standing orders of the New 

Forest National Park Authority as provided for in Part 1 of Schedule 3 to the New Forest 

National Park Authority (Establishment) Order 2005(a). 

 

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

 

 Kris Hopkins 

 Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 

25th March 2015 Department for Communities and Local Government  

 SCHEDULE Regulation 2 

 

 “SCHEDULE 3 Regulation 6 

Provisions to be incorporated in standing orders in respect of 

disciplinary action 

1. In the following paragraphs— 

(a) “the 2011 Act” means the Localism Act 2011(b); 

(b) “chief finance officer”, “disciplinary action”, “head of the authority’s paid service” 

and “monitoring officer” have the same meaning as in regulation 2 of the Local 

Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001(c); 

(c) “independent person” means a person appointed under section 28(7) of the 2011 

Act; 

(d) “local government elector” means a person registered as a local government 

elector in the register of electors in the authority’s area in accordance with the 

Representation of the People Acts; 

(e) “the Panel” means a committee appointed by the authority under section 102(4) of 

the Local Government Act 1972(d) for the purposes of advising the authority on 

matters relating to the dismissal of relevant officers of the authority; 

(f) “relevant meeting” means a meeting of the authority to consider whether or not to 

approve a proposal to dismiss a relevant officer; and 

(g) “relevant officer” means the chief finance officer, head of the authority’s paid 

service or monitoring officer, as the case may be. 

2. A relevant officer may not be dismissed by an authority unless the procedure set out in 

the following paragraphs is complied with. 

3. The authority must invite relevant independent persons to be considered for 

appointment to the Panel, with a view to appointing at least two such persons to the Panel. 

4. In paragraph 3 “relevant independent person” means any independent person who has 

been appointed by the authority or, where there are fewer than two such persons, such 

independent persons as have been appointed by another authority or authorities as the 

authority considers appropriate. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) SI 2005/421. Article 16 of Part 1 of Schedule 3 of the Order applies regulation 7 of the 2001 Regulations to the New Forest 

National Park Authority, as if it were a local authority as referred to in the 2001 Regulations. 
(b) 2011 c. 20. 
(c) S.I. 2001/3384.  
(d) 1972 c. 70. 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

25



 

 4

5. Subject to paragraph 6, the authority must appoint to the Panel such relevant 

independent persons who have accepted an invitation issued in accordance with paragraph 3 

in accordance with the following priority order— 

(a) a relevant independent person who has been appointed by the authority and who is 

a local government elector; 

(b) any other relevant independent person who has been appointed by the authority; 

(c) a relevant independent person who has been appointed by another authority or 

authorities. 

6. An authority is not required to appoint more than two relevant independent persons in 

accordance with paragraph 5 but may do so. 

7. The authority must appoint any Panel at least 20 working days before the relevant 

meeting. 

8. Before the taking of a vote at the relevant meeting on whether or not to approve such a 

dismissal, the authority must take into account, in particular— 

(a) any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel; 

(b) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal; and 

(c) any representations from the relevant officer. 

9. Any remuneration, allowances or fees paid by the authority to an independent person 

appointed to the Panel must not exceed the level of remuneration, allowances or fees 

payable to that independent person in respect of that person’s role as independent person 

under the 2011 Act.” 

 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 

(“the 2001 Regulations”), which require certain local authorities in England to make or modify 

standing orders so that they include certain provisions relating to staff and other matters. 

Regulation 2 removes the provisions in the 2001 Regulations, except insofar as they apply in 

relation to the standing orders of the New Forest National Park Authority, relating to the 

“designated independent person” required to be appointed by a local authority before it could 

dismiss or discipline its head of paid service, monitoring officer or chief finance officer. It makes 

new provision about the procedure to be followed in such cases, which authorities are required to 

include in their standing orders. It also requires that the authority, when setting up its panel for the 

purpose of advising on matters relating to the dismissal of a relevant officer, invite independent 

persons who have been appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011. The authority is 

required to appoint such independent persons to the panel in the specified priority order and the 

panel must have at least two members. 

Regulation 3 makes transitional provisions in relation to regulation 2. 

No impact assessment has been prepared in relation to these Regulations because no impact on the 

private or voluntary sectors is foreseen. 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

26



 
OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 
 

1. RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT 
 
 (a)  Declarations 
 

(i) The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate 
for appointment as an officer to state in writing whether they 
are the parent, grandparent, partner, child, stepchild, adopted 
child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece 
of an existing councillor, or officer of the Council; or of the 
partner of such persons. 

  
(ii) No candidate so related to a councillor or an officer will be 

appointed without the authority of the relevant chief officer or 
an officer nominated by him/her. 

 
 (b)  Seeking support for Appointment 
 

(i) Subject to paragraph (iii) the Council will disqualify any 
applicant who directly or indirectly seeks the support of any 
councillor for any appointment with the Council.  The context of 
this paragraph will be included in any recruitment information. 
 

(ii) Subject to paragraph (iii) no councillor will seek support for any 
person for any appointment with the Council. 
 

(iii) Nothing in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above will preclude a 
councillor from giving a written reference for a candidate for 
submission with an application for appointment. 

 
2. RECRUITMENT OF HEAD OF PAID SERVICE AND CHIEF OFFICERS 
 

Where the Council proposes to appoint a chief officer and it is not 
proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from among their 
existing officers, the Council will:- 

 
(a) draw up a statement specifying; 

 
 (i)  the duties of the officer concerned; and 
  
 (ii)  any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to 

be appointed: 
  
(b) make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way 

as is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are 
qualified to apply for it; and 

  
(c) make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in 

paragraph (1) to be sent to any person on request. 
  

 

APPENDIX B 

27



3. APPOINTMENT OF HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 

Where the post of Head of Paid Service has been advertised in 
accordance with paragraph 2 above, an appointments panel 
appointed by the Council and including at least one member of the 
Executive will:- 

 
(a) interview all qualified applicants for the post; or 
  
(b) select a shortlist of such qualified applicants and interview those 

included on the shortlist; and 
  
(c) recommend an appointment to the Council. 

 
The Full Council may only approve the appointment of the Head of 
Paid Service where no well-founded objection has been made by any 
member of the Executive. If an objection is made by a member of the 
Executive, the Full Council, must consider such objection and satisfy 
itself that either the objection is unfounded or that it has taken action 
in respect of the objection . 

 
4. APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF OFFICERS AND DEPUTY CHIEF 

OFFICERS 
             
           Where a Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer post has been 

advertised in accordance with paragraph 2, the appointment will be 
made by an Appointment Panel consisting of five members and 
appointed by the Council, which shall be politically balanced. The 
Leaders of the Controlling Group and Opposition shall choose their 
respective members depending on the appointment to be made. The 
offer of appointment cannot be made until the Director/Head of Paid 
Service has been consulted.  

 
5. OTHER APPOINTMENTS 
 

(a) Officers below Deputy Chief Officer - Appointment of officers 
below deputy chief officer (other than assistants to political 
groups) is the responsibility of the head of paid service or his/her 
nominee, and may not be made by councillors. 

  
(b) Assistants to Political Groups - Appointment of an assistant to a 

political group shall be made in accordance with the wishes of 
that political group. 

 
6. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 

(a) Suspension - The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and 
Chief Finance Officer may be suspended whilst an investigation 
takes place into alleged misconduct.  That suspension will be on 
full pay and last no longer than two months. 

  
(b) Independent Person.  No other disciplinary action may be taken in 

respect of any of the officers stated above except in accordance 
with a recommendation in a report made by a designated 
independent person. 

  
(c) Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against 

any officer below Deputy Chief Officer except where such 

28



involvement is necessary for any investigation or inquiry into 
alleged misconduct, through the Council's disciplinary, capability, 
and related procedures, as adopted from time-to-time which may 
allow a right of appeal to members in respect of disciplinary 
action. 

 
 
7. DISMISSAL 
  

Councillors will not be involved in the dismissal of any officer below 
Deputy Chief Officer except where such involvement is necessary for 
any investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct, through the 
Council's disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as adopted 
from time-to-time may allow a right of appeal to members in respect of 
dismissals. 

 
 
8.       APPEALS 
          

Any appeal against dismissal will be heard by the Personnel Appeals 
Panel. 

           
 

29



30

This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 8 JUNE 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To put forward the current Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 

for consideration by members. 
 

2. Work Programme Summary 
 

2.1 The work programme is attached as Appendix A, and was agreed at the last 
meeting of the Committee. 
 

2.2 Members are encouraged to put forward any proposals for relevant matters of 
concern or interest to them or the residents of their ward which the Ethics and 
Engagement Committee may be able to consider. 
 

3. Changes Made to the Work Programme 
 

3.1 
 

At the meeting of 23 March 2015, the work programme for 2015/16 was agreed. 
There is flexibility within the work programme to react to changing priorities as 
necessary. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
Any additions to the work programme should be made in accordance with the 
scope of the Committee as established within its terms of reference. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That the Committee consider the work programme and propose any suitable 
changes if necessary. 
 

5.2 
 

That the Committee consider items scheduled for the next meeting and any 
necessary arrangements relating to them. 

 

Item No. 8

31



32

This page is intentionally blank.



APPENDIX A 
 

Ethics and Engagement Committee Work Programme 2015/16 
 

8 June 2015 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

� To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Induction Review Following consideration of the plans for the induction of 
any newly-elected councillors in May 2015, this will 
provide an opportunity for members to consider the 
outcome of the induction provided to new members. 
 

� To consider the delivery of member 
inductions and to offer any 
recommendations for future 
improvement. 

Local Democracy Week 
Update 

To update members on the plans for Local Democracy 
Week 2015. 
 

� To consider the arrangements made 
and recommend any suitable changes. 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

� To agree the work programme. 
� To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 
 
21 September 2015 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

� To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Local Democracy 
Week Update 

To update members on the plans for Local Democracy 
Week 2015. 
 

� To consider the arrangements made 
and recommend any suitable changes. 

Member Development 
Update 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 

� To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

33



perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

� To agree the work programme. 
� To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 
7 December 2015 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

� To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Individual Electoral 
Registration 

Individual electoral registration (IER) has been 
introduced across the country, shifting the process for 
registering electors from a household to an individual 
basis. 
 

� To consider the manner in which IER 
has been implemented within Lincoln 
and the potential impact upon voter 
registration. 

 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

� To agree the work programme for 
2015/16. 

� To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 
 
21 March 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

� To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Development 
Update 
 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 
perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

� To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

34



Work Programme 2016/17 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

� To agree the work programme for 
2016/17. 

� To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 

35



36

T
his page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 23 March 2015
	3 Code of Conduct: Cases Review
	4 Member Induction Review
	5 Local Democracy Week Update
	6 Independent Person Allowance
	7 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015
	The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 - Appendix A
	The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 - Appendix B

	8 Work Programme Update
	Work Programme Update - Appendix A


